Paramount Unified School District



15110 California Avenue, Paramount, California 90723-4378 (562) 602-6000 Fax (562) 602-8111

BOARD OF EDUCATION

CARMEN GOMEZ
President
YESENIA CUARENTA
Vice President
SONIA DE LEON
Member
LINDA GARCIA
Member
VIVIAN HANSEN
Member

RUTH PÉREZ District Superintendent

REGULAR MEETING OF BOARD OF EDUCATION

MINUTES July 8, 2019

The meeting was called to order at 6:07 p.m. by President Carmen Gomez in the Boardroom at the District Office, 15110 California Avenue, Paramount, California.

Pledge of Allegiance Lucy Albera, Director-Nutrition Services led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call Carmen Gomez Linda Garcia Yesenia Cuarenta Vivian Hansen

Sonia De Leon

Administrators Present Ruth Pérez, Superintendent

Ruben Frutos, Assistant Superintendent-Business Services Myrna Morales, Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources

Ryan Smith, Assistant Superintendent-Secondary Educational Services

Lucy Albera, Director-Nutrition Services

Jessie Flores, Interim Director-Safety & Security Greg Francois, Director-Secondary Education Elida Garcia, Director-Special Education

Renee Jeffrey, Director-K-5 Instructional Support & Innovative Programs

Scott Law, Director-Facilities & Project Management

Patricia Tu. Director-Fiscal Services

Christiana Kraus, Principal-Paramount High School

Anna Yasuhara, Assistant Principal-Paramount High School

Approve Agenda July 8, 2019

1.204

Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded. Superintendent Pérez reported that there are changes needed to consent item 3.3-C and action item 3.8-A.

3.3-C on page 45 - fiscal impact should reflect an amount of \$94,000 and in the background information of the item as indicated on page 49 of the contract.

3.8-A on page 103 to insure taxes are included, the fiscal impact should reflect \$76,313.90 from LCAP Supplemental and Concentration funds plus any applicable sales tax on product.

The motion carried 5-0 to approve the agenda of July 8, 2019 with noted changes.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, President Gomez

Special Meeting Minutes June 4, 2019 1.205

Board Member Hansen moved, Vice President Cuarenta seconded and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of June 4, 2019.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, President Gomez

Regular Meeting Minutes June 24, 2019 1.206

Board Member Garcia moved, Board Member Hansen seconded and the motion carried 4-0 to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 24, 2019.

Ayes: 4 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta

Board President Gomez did not vote as she was absent from the June 24, 2019 meeting.

REPORTS

Employee Representative Reports

TAP Representative Maria Parkins reported that teachers are still enjoying their well deserved time off and hopes that everyone will get some time off as well.

CSEA Representative Alex Maldonado thanked the Board for voting on the Sunshine contract being presented to the Board. He added that there has been some negotiations movement and is hoping to come to an agreement to move forward. CSEA appreciates the teams effort and support.

Board Member Reports

Board Member Garcia thanked all for their prayers and well wishes. She shared information about the upcoming Tepic Sister Cities meeting and Dia del los Muertos. She provided information about a Cultural Community Garden that Tepic Sister Cities is working on establishing with the City of Paramount.

Board Member De Leon reported that she attended the NEARA (National Education Association Representative Assembly) as a state delegate for the California's Teacher Association. She learned that she is not alone in the sentiment of teacher respect. Also, about student wrap around services and full funding education. She also attended a protest of the concentration camps for children in Houston, Texas. She will be attending the last Masters in Governance Course this weekend.

Board Member Hansen reported that she attended the retirement celebration for three people at the Adult Ed.

Board Vice President Cuarenta joined Paramount educators during teacher training.

Board President Gomez reported that she attended Buena Vista, Paramount Adult School Transition and Paramount High School graduations and Hollydale's promotion. She attended the Turnaround Arts Conference with Sue Saikaly-Principal, Kim Chavez-Assistant Principal, and Tamara Calero-Hill-Counselor of Zamboni Middle School. After the Turnaround Arts Conference, Board President Gomez attended the 15th Annual Schools to Watch Leadership Conference in which Zamboni Middle School presented "Connectedness to Schools" and the overall impact this has on student success and academic achievement.

Board President provided each Board member with a copy of a study of outcomes on the school-wide implementation of Beat the Odds. Board President Gomez along with Zamboni's staff attended an advocacy meeting on the Hill with Congresswoman Lucille Roybal-Allard and took a tour of Congress.

Superintendent's Report

Superintendent Dr. Pérez highlighted the following:

 Superintendent Pérez attended the awards ceremony in D.C. in support and celebration for the success of Zamboni Middle School. She gave a shout out to Zamboni for being re-designated a Schools to Watch and for all their hard work.

Introductions:

Dr. Elida Garcia, Director-Special Education

Dr. Elida Garcia received her Bachelor's Degree in Psychology from UCLA. She received her Master's Degree in Counseling/ School Psychology from California State University, Northridge and her Doctorate from Pepperdine University in Educational Leadership and Policy.

Elida has a vast experience in education having previously served as a School Psychologist, Parent Involvement Facilitator, and a Grants Administrator for twelve years in Hawthorne Unified School District. She was a Professor with Loyola Marymount University for two years. She then worked as a Family Literacy Facilitator for five years with Los Angeles County Office of Education. For the past seven years, Elida has successfully served as the Early Childhood Education Program Director.

Elida Garcia, Director-Special Education was welcomed.

Christiana Kraus, Principal-Paramount High School

Christiana Kraus received her Bachelor's Degree in History and Kinesiology and her Master's Degree in Physical Education Administration from California State University, Dominguez Hills.

Christiana was a Social Studies and Physical Education Teacher for seven years at Santa Fe High School in Whittier Union High School District. She then served as the Assistant Principal of Guidance for four years at California High School and the Assistant Principal of Curriculum for three years at Pioneer High School in the Whittier Union High School District. In 2014, she became a Principal at Covina High School in Covina Valley Unified School District. For the past two years, Christiana has worked as a Leadership Solutions Advisor for the Flippen Group.

Christiana Kraus, Principal-Paramount High School was welcomed.

Probolsky Voter Survey Results

Mr. Adam Probolsky, presented the Board with the results on the voter survey conducted by his Research firm on Board Member term limits.

Mr. Probolsky shared results on questions asked of 300 likely November 2020 voters in Paramount Unified School District. Interviews were conducted with respondents on both landlines and mobile phones and were offered in English and Spanish as well as on-line.

There was discussion and a request to place term limits on the 2020 election ballot and in September to discuss the policy language to be on the ballot.

President Gomez motioned, Board Member De Leon seconded and the motion failed 2-2-1 to place term limits on the 2020 election ballot.

Ayes: 2 – Board Members De Leon, President Gomez

Noes: 2 – Board Members, Garcia, Hansen

Abstain: 1 – Vice President Cuarenta

There were Board Member requests to obtain more detailed information on the results of the 366 page survey and if a Study Session can be scheduled in late August to allow the Board to obtain the results data and upon the Study Session concluding, the motion to place term limits will be brought back to the Board in September for a vote.

The presentation is available for viewing on the District website.

L.A. Metro Project

Mr. Ruben Frutos, Assistant Superintendent-Business Services provided the Board with an update on the L.A. Metro project. Information included a project overview of the location, environmental impact and cost.

There was discussion on the proposed tunnel and who will be monitoring it, concerns of safety, the design, and funding.

The presentation is available on the District website.

Guidelines for Booster Clubs, Parent and School-Connected Organizations

Mr. Ruben Frutos, Assistant Superintendent-Business Services provided information to the Board on the Guidelines for Booster Clubs, Parent and School-Connected Organizations. The Guidelines are available for viewing on the District's website in English and Spanish.

There was a question as to where the Frequently Asked Questions were obtained? Mr. Frutos stated that he has been working with guidelines for many years and the questions have come from people and while hiring groups/partners.

BOARD MEETING CALENDAR

There were no changes to the Board meeting calendar.

Superintendent Pérez shared that at the August Board meeting, she will be providing some dates to the Board for potential Study Sessions. Study Sessions topics would be on Special Education, to share new initiatives coming forward and to provide updates on previous initiatives, and on the Probolsky Survey report. It was asked if the 366 page Survey results would be received prior to the Study Session and if it could be provided two weeks in advance.

A reminder was provided on the Special Meeting on August 6, 2019 at 5:30 p.m.

HEARING SECTION

During the public hearing section the following community members addressed the Board and provided public comments: Sara Huezo, Adrian Alvarez.

Sara Huezo addressed the Board on open comments including her previous comments from a previous meeting, transparency, Sparkletts water being delivered to the District and students drinking water from old

7-8-19

1.207

pipes and concerns she has on the Metro project. She requested her comments be placed in the minutes word for word.

Superintendent Pérez commented that new minutes have been adjusted to include the name of the speaker and topics they addressed.

A Board member commented that they believe there have been community meetings on the Metro project and for information to be gathered on these meetings to inform our parents/community of these meetings so they can provide input. Superintendent Pérez requested that the report on water be placed on the District website.

A Board member asked if Ms. Huezo's questions will be addressed. Dr. Pérez commented that a letter will be mailed and a copy would be provided to the Board.

Adrian Alvarez addressed the Board on public speakers rights to speak and participate during the hearing section, and on protocols, Board member accountability, follow up to concerns, intent to democratize the Board, intimidation and harassment of the immigrant community by the President.

There was discussion regarding the Board meeting minutes and was requested by a Board member to have minutes be formatted as they used to be. There was Board inquiry as to how long our Board meeting videos are accessible.

CONSENT ITEMS

0.208

Vice President Cuarenta motioned, Board Member De Leon seconded and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the consent items.

The following questions were received from the Board related to: 2.1-C pages 11-15 – Question as to what does the District consider "temporary". Dr. Myrna Morales, Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources provided a response and shared that for better clarification and understanding, the Ed. Code definition will be provided and sent to the Board with the Wednesday Report on July 10, 2019.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, President Gomez

General Services

Representatives to Athletic Leagues for 2019-20 1.208 Approved Christiana Kraus, Paramount High School Principal as a District Representative to athletic leagues for the 2019-20 school year.

Human Resources

Personnel Report 19-01 2.208

Accepted Personnel Report 19-01 as submitted. The report includes details, assignments, terminations, and employment of personnel. Certain assignments listed in this report may be contingent upon allocation of funding in the 2019-20 State Budget Act and related legislation.

Consultant Services 2.208

Approved the consultant services request authorizing contracts with consultants or independent contractors who provide specialized services, as submitted.

Educational Services

Consultant and Contract Services 3.208 Approved the consultant and contract services request authorizing contracts with consultant or independent contractors who provide specialized services, as submitted.

Memorandum of Understanding with Tri City Consortium for distribution of AB 104 Adult Education Block Grant Funds 3.208 Approved Memorandum of Understanding with Tri City Consortium for distribution of AB 104 Adult Education Block Grant Funds for the 2019-20 school year

Contract with the Los Angeles County Probation Department for a Gang Alternative and Prevention Program Officer 3.208 Approved the contract with the Los Angeles County Probation Department for a Gang Alternative and Prevention Program Officer for the 2019-20 school year.

Business Services

Purchase Order Report, 19-01 4.208

Approved Purchase Order Report 19-01 authorizing the purchase of supplies, equipment, and services for the District.

Consultant Services 4.208

Approved the consultant services requests authorizing contracts with consultants or independent contractors who provide specialized services and authorize the Superintendent or designee to execute all necessary documents.

Acceptance of Donations 4.208

Accepted the donations as presented on behalf of the District with any bequests or gifts of money or property for a purpose deemed to be suitable by the District.

Warrants for the Month of May 2019

Approved warrants for all funds through May with a total of \$18,537,641.76.

Warrants for the Month of June 2019 4.208 Approved warrants for all funds through June with a total of \$17,268,693.82.

ACTION ITEMS

4.208

General Services

Resolution 19-01 2019-20 Board Memberships 1.209 Board Member De Leon moved, Board Member Hansen seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-01 authorizing memberships in associations and organizations for the Board of Education members for the 2019-20 school year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

2019-20 Compensation for Board of Education Members 1.210 President Gomez moved, Board Member De Leon seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve compensation per Education Code Section 25120 for the Board of Education members for the 2019-20 school year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Resolution 19-02 Board Member Compensation for Absence Due to Illness 1.211 Board Member Hansen moved, President Gomez seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-02 authorizing the compensation of a Board of Education member for a maximum of two Board meetings per calendar year when the member cannot attend the meetings due to illness.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Human Resources

Establishment of a Job Description for Special Education Data Specialist and Establishment of, and Employment Authorization for, 1 Position at 8 hours per day, 12-months 2.212 Board Member Garcia moved, Vice President Cuarenta seconded, and the motion carried 4-1 to approve the new job description of Special Education Data Specialist and establishment of, and employment authorization for, 1 position at 8 hours per day, 12-months.

Ayes: 4 – Board Members Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta President Gomez

Abstain: 1 – Board Member De Leon

Educational Services

Inter-Intra SELPA Agreements for the 2019-20 School Year for Students with Low Incidence Disabilities 3.213 Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the contracts for 44 Paramount Unified School District students who will require Deaf and Hard of Hearing or Visual Impairment services for the 2019-20 school year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Nonpublic School Placement for a Special Education Student for 2018-19 3.214 Board Member Garcia moved, Board Member Hansen seconded the motion carried 5-0 to ratify and approve the placement for special education students in nonpublic schools as determined by the students' Individual Education Plan for the 2018-19 school year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Resolution 19-07, Local Agreement for Child Development Services for the California State Preschool Program, 2019-20 3.215 Board Member De Leon moved, President Gomez seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-07, the California State Preschool Contract for part-day preschool services provided at Collins, Gaines, Hollydale, Keppel, Mokler, Tanner and Wirtz (Jackson) sites for the 2019-20 school year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Nonpublic and Residential, Nonsectarian School/Agency Services Annual Master Contracts for Special Education Students, 2019-20 School Year 3.216 Board Member Garcia moved, Board Member Hansen seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School/Agency Services Annual Master Contracts for the placement of Special Education students in nonpublic schools, as determined by the students' Individual Education Plan for the 2019-20 school year.

There was a question on student placements. "What are the yearly placement numbers over the past five years and to what agencies?" It was also asked as to how often does the Program Specialist meet with the Nonpublic school representative to collaborate and monitor the goals

to come back to Paramount. A report will be provided prior to a Study Session on Special Education so that the Board has time to prepare their questions.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Nonpublic and Residential School Placements for Special Education Students, 2019-20 School Year 3.217 Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the funds for the placement of special education students in nonpublic schools or residential treatment centers, as determined by students' Individual Education Plans for the 2019-20 school year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Educational Solutions Northwest –Interactive Mathematics Program Contract 3.218 President Gomez moved, Vice President Cuarenta seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the contract request with James Short under Educational Solutions Northwest (ESNW) in order to provide professional development to Paramount Unified School District mathematics teachers between July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

There was a question if this is an extension of the contract. Dr. Smith confirmed that this is continuing the consultant's work for the upcoming year and added that Odyssey will have three new math teachers and therefore, the school would need the District to provide support in that curriculum. It was also asked if data was collected as to how students did. Dr. Smith shared that the information would be provided via an update.

There was an additional question as to how long it would take to have this training at the comprehensive high school. Dr. Smith commented that it can be discussed at a Study Session.

It was noted that the title of Mr. Short be added to the signature page of the contract.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Carl D. Perkins Grant Application for Paramount Adult School 3.219 Board Member De Leon moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the submission of the application Carl D. Perkins Grant for the 2019-20 school year for Paramount Adult School.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Naviance Software Contract Renewal 3.220 Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the purchase of the renewal Naviance software program for 2019-20.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Physical Education Exemption for High School Students 3.221 Board Member De Leon moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve physical education exemptions for students who meet the criteria for either the two-year exemption or the permanent exemption.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta. Board President Gomez

Agreement with LIFE Mentor Program Consultant 3.222

Vice President Cuarenta moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the agreement with LIFE Mentor Program Consultant to provide high school age youth the opportunity to examine and experience life-ready principles through small group discussion and community based projects.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Business Services

Notices of Completion – Field Service Contracts 4.223 Board Member Garcia moved, Board Member De Leon seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to accept as completed the Field Service Contracts for network cabling installation in twelve rooms at Mokler, carpentry repairs at Wirtz, interior painting of sixteen rooms at Wirtz and replace interior LED lighting Districtwide and authorize the Superintendent or designee to file the Notices of Completion and make payment to all contracted parties upon expiration of the lien period and determination that no liens are outstanding.

Ayes: 4 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Vice President Cuarenta. Board President Gomez

Absent: 1 – Board Member Hansen (stepped away)

Ratification – Bid Summary – Concrete and Carpentry – Field Service Contracts 4.224 Board Member Garcia moved, President Gomez seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the above-mentioned contracts to the lowest responsive bidders as identified.

Ayes: 4 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Absent: 1 – Board Member Hansen (stepped away)

Service Agreement – Butler CHEMICALS, INC. 4.225

Vice President Cuarenta moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to authorize staff to enter into the service agreement with Butler CHEMICALS, INC. and further authorize the Superintendent or designee to execute all necessary documents.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Service Agreement – Action Duct Cleaning Company – Kitchen Services 4.226 Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to authorize staff to enter into the service agreement with Action Duct Cleaning Co. and further authorize the Superintendent or designee to execute all necessary documents.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Consulting Agreement – Lynette Rock Consultant, R.D., SNA 4.227 Board Member Garcia moved, Vice President Cuarenta seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the Consulting Agreement with Ms. Lynette Rock and authorize the Superintendent or designee to execute all necessary documents.

A Board member requested for clarification on the difference between

Community Eligibility Provision (CEP) versus Provision 2 (P2). Mr. Frutos provided the clarification.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Resolution 19-03, Inter-fund Cash Transfers 4.228

Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-03, Interfund Cash Transfers.

There was discussion as to whether the District has done these transfers in the past. Mr. Frutos shared that this is an annual resolution which allows for the business of the District to be carried even if funds from the state have not been received. It was asked if every year these resolutions will come the Board. Mr. Frutos commented that yes.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Resolution 19-04, Temporary Transfers from the School Pools Fund Maintained by the Los Angeles County Treasurer 4.229 Board Member Garcia moved, President Gomez seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-04, Temporary Transfers from the School Pools Fund maintained by the Los Angeles County Treasurer.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Resolution 19-05, Temporary Interfund Borrowing 4.230

Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-05, Temporary Interfund Borrowing between any of the District's operating funds as needed, during the 2019-2020 fiscal year.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Resolution 19-06, Annual Delegation of Administrative Authority to Process Routine Budget Revisions, Adjustments, and Transfers 4.231 Board Member De Leon moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adopt Resolution 19-06, authorizing the Los Angeles County Superintendent of Schools to process routine budget revisions, adjustments, and transfers.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Bid No. 10-18-19 Captain Raymond Collins Relocatables 4.232 Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to authorize staff to review, award, and execute all necessary documents for the completion of this project.

It was commented by a Board member that a couple Board members met with Mr. Frutos who answered questions about this item.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

INFORMATION ITEMS

Beginning and Ending Times for Schools

The Board received as information the beginning and ending times for schools.

Program Self-Evaluation Report for State Preschool

The Board received as information the State Preschool Self-Evaluation report

Williams Settlement Quarterly Uniform Complaint Summary

The Board received as information the required Williams Settlement Quarterly Uniform Complaint Summary for the fourth quarter April 1-June 30, 2019.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Board President Gomez announced that the next Regular Meeting would be on Monday, July 8, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the Boardroom of the District Office.

President Gomez announced that signs would be posted on each corner of the streets and a sign at the door to direct constituents where the meeting is and which door to enter from.

Staff Employee Comments Per Government Code 54957

There were no comments.

CLOSED SESSION

The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:34 p.m. to discuss Conference with Labor Negotiator, Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal, Release and Public Employee Employment.

OPEN SESSION

The Board reconvened to Regular Session at 10:15 p.m. President Gomez reported that the Board discussed Conference with Labor Negotiator, Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal, Release and Public Employee Employment.

In Closed Session the Board took action on the following:

Public Employee Employment 2.233

Board Member De Leon moved, Board Member Hansen seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 approve the appointment of Anjel Gutierrez as Secondary Assistant Principal effective as soon as mutually agreeable.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Board Member Garcia moved, Board Member Hansen seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the appointment of Viola Scott as Assistant Principal effective as soon as mutually agreeable.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Board Member Garcia moved, Vice President Cuarenta seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the appointment of Joseph Faulkner as Dean of Students effective as soon as mutually agreeable.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Board Member De Leon moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the appointment of Joseph Jackson as Dean of Students effective as soon as mutually

agreeable.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

2.234

2.235

2.236

2.237

Board Member Hansen moved, Board Member Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to approve the appointment of Leslie Leonard as Dean of Students effective as soon as mutually agreeable.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

ADJOURNMENT

Board Member Hansen moved, Vice President Cuarenta seconded, and the motion carried 5-0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Education held on July 8, 2019 at 10:16 p.m.

Ayes: 5 – Board Members De Leon, Garcia, Hansen, Vice President Cuarenta, Board President Gomez

Ruth Pérez, Secretary To the Board of Education

President

Vice President/Clerk